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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Trustees 
Town of Spiro, Oklahoma 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying modified cash basis financial 
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and aggregate remaining fund information 
of the Town of Spiro, Oklahoma, as of and for the fi seal year ended 
June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements as listed 
in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 
these financial statements in accordance with the modified cash basis 
of accounting described in Note 1. This includes determining that the 
modified cash basis of accounting is an acceptable basis for the 
preparation of the financial statements in the circumstances. 
Management is also responsible for the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express op1n1ons on these financial statements 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing 
standards genera 11 y accepted in the United States of America, and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States, and in accordance with Oklahoma Statutes. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
Town's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
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order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Town's internal control. Accordingly, we express 
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used, and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made, by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present 
fairly, in all material respects, the respective modified cash basis 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the Town of Spiro, Oklahoma, as of June 30, 2013, and 
the respective changes in modified cash basis financial position and, 
where applicable. cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
conformity with the basis of accounting described in Note 1. 

Other Matters 

Supple1rentary and Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the 
financial statements taken as a whole. The management's discussion and 
analysis, budgetary comparison schedules, introductory section and 
other supplementary information, including the accompanying schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards, as required by Office of Management and 
Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non­
Profit Organizations, are presented for purposes of additional analysis 
and are not a required part of the financial statements of the Town of 
Spiro, Oklahoma. 

Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prep a re the basic financial statements. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the basic financial statements or the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
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opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued 
our report dated May 6, 2015, on our consideration of the Town of 
Spiro's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts 
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is 
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or 
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in compliance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Town of 
Spiro's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Basis of Accounting 

We draw attention to Note 1 of the financial statements that describes 
the basis of accounting. The financial statements are prepared on the 
modified cash basis of accounting, which is a basis of accounting other 
than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

~,h,w Cf>A $b;e/,ti~ P.c. 
Kershaw CPA & Associates, PC 

May 6, 2015 
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TOWN OF SPIRO 
SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 74959 

131 South Main (918) 962-2477 

(Unaudited) 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Our discussion and analysis of the Town of Spiro's financial performance provides an 
overview of the Town's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, within 
the limitations of the Town's modified cash basis of accounting. Please read it in 
conjunction with the Town's financial statements that begin on page 14. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The Town's total revenues exceeded total expenses, on the modified cash basis 
of accounting, by $168,459 for the year, resulting in an increase in total net 
position of 2.28 percent over the previous year. 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

This annual report is presented in a format consistent with the presentation 
requirements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 
34, as applicable to the Town's modified cash basis of accounting. 

Report Components This annual report consists of five parts as follows: 

Government-Wide Financial Statements: The Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Activities (on pages 14-16) provide information about the activities of the 
Town government-wide (or "as a whole") and present a longer-term view of the Town's 
finances. 

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements (starting on page 17) 
focus on the individual parts of the Town government. Fund financial statements also 
report the Town's operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by 
providing information about the Town's most significant ("major") funds. For 
governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were financed in the 
short term as well as what remains for future spending. For proprietary activities, these 
statements offer short-term and long-term financial information about the activities the 
Town operates like businesses, such as electric, water, sewer and sanitation services. 

Notes to the Financial Statements: The notes to the financial statements are an 
integral part of the government-wide and fund financial statements and provide 
expanded explanation and detail regarding the information reported in the statements. 
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TOWN OF SPIRO 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
PAGE 2 (Unaudited) 

Supplementary Information: This Management's Discussion and Analysis and 
(starting on page 46) the Defined Benefit Retirement Plan - Schedule of Funding 
Progress and Governmental Funds Budgetary Comparison Schedules represent financial 
information to provide users of this report with additional data that supplements the 
government-wide statements, fund financial statements, and notes (referred to as "the 
basic financial statements"). 

Other Supplementary Information: This part of the annual report includes 
financial information such as combining statements for nonmajor funds (which are 
added together and shown in the fund financial statements in a single column. This 
other supplemental financial information is provided to address certain specific needs of 
various users of the Town's annual report. 

Basis of Accounting 

The Town has elected to present its financial statements on a modified cash basis of 
accounting. This modified cash basis of accounting is a basis of accounting other than 
generally accepted accounting principles. Basis of accounting is a reference to when 
financial events are recorded, such as the timing for recognizing revenues, expenses, 
and their related assets and liabilities. Under the Town's modified cash basis of 
accounting, revenues and expenses and related assets and liabilities are recorded when 
they result from cash transactions, except for the recording of depreciation expense on 
capital assets in the government-wide financial statements for all activities and in the 
fund financial statements for proprietary fund activities. 

As a result of the use of this modified cash basis of accounting, certain assets and their 
related revenues (such as accounts receivable and revenue for billed or provided 
services not yet collected) and certain liabilities and their related expenses (such as 
accounts payable and expenses for goods or services received but not yet paid, and 
accrued expenses and liabilities) are not recorded in these financial statements. 
Therefore, when reviewing the financial information and discussion within this annual 
report, the reader should keep in mind the limitations resulting from the use of the 
modified cash basis of accounting. 

Reoorting the Town as a Whole 

The Town's Reporting Entity Presentation 

This annual report includes all activities for which the Town of Spiro Council is fiscally 
responsible. These activities, defined as the Town's reporting entity, are operated within 
separate legal entities that make up the primary government and other legal entity that 
is included as a component unit. 
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TOWN OF SPIRO 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
PAGE 3 (Unaudited) 

The primary government includes the following legal entities: 
• The Town of Spiro 
• Spiro Municipal Improvement Authority 

The Government-Wide Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities 

Our financial analysis of the Town as a whole begins on page 9. The government-wide 
financial statements are presented on pages 14 through 16. One of the most important 
questions asked about the Town's finances is, "Is the Town as a whole better off or 
worse off as a result of the year's activities?" The Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Activities report information about the Town as a whole and about its 
activities in a way that helps answer this question. These statements include all of the 
Town's assets and liabilities resulting from the use of the modified cash basis of 
accounting. 

These two statements report the Town's net position and changes in them. Keeping in 
mind the limitations of the modified cash basis of accounting, you can think of the 
Town's net position -the difference between assets and liabilities-as one way to 
measure the Town's financial health or financial position. Over time, increases or 
decreases in the Town's net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is 
improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other nonfinancial factors, 
however, such as changes in the Town's sales tax base and the condition of the Town's 
roads, to assess the overall health of the Town. 

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the Town 
into two kinds of activities: 

Governmental activities. Most of the Town's basic services are reported here, including 
the police, fire, general administration, streets, parks, swimming pool, airport, civil 
defense, community center, industrial building and library. Sales taxes, franchise fees, 
fines, and state and federal grants finance most of these activities. 

Business-type activities. The Town charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or 
most of the cost of certain services it provides. The Town's electric, water, sewer and 
sanitation systems are reported here. 
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TOWN OF SPIRO 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
PAGE 4 (Unaudited) 

Reporting the Town's Most Significant Funds 

The Fund Financial Statements-Our analysis of the Town's major funds begins on 
page 9. The fund financial statements begin on page 17 and provide detailed 
information about the most significant funds-not the Town as a whole. Some funds 
are required to be established by State law and by bond covenants. However, the Town 
Council establishes certain other funds to help it control and manage money for 
particular purposes or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain 
taxes, grants, and other money. The Town's two kinds of funds-governmental and 
proprietary-use different accounting approaches. 

Governmental funds-Most of the Town's basic services are reported in 
governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds 
and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These funds 
report the acquisition of capital assets and payments for debt principal as 
expenditures and not as changes to asset and debt balances. The governmental 
fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the Town's general 
government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund 
information helps you determine (through a review of changes to fund balance) 
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near 
future to finance the Town's programs. We describe the relationship (or 
differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net 
Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in reconciliation at 
the bottom of the each fund financial statement. The Town considers the General 
Fund and the Street Utility Sales Tax Fund to be significant or major governmental 
funds. All other governmental funds are aggregated in a single column entitled 
nonmajor funds. 

Proprietary fund~hen the Town charges customers for the services it 
provides, these services are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary 
funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement 
of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. For example, proprietary fund 
capital assets are capitalized and depreciated and principal payments on long-term 
debt are recorded as a reduction to the liability. In fact, the Town's proprietary 
(enterprise) fund financial statements are essentially the same as the business-type 
activities we report in the government-wide statements but the fund statements 
provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows. The Town only 
has one enterprise fund-the Public Works Authority Utilities Fund. 

Fiduciary funds- Normally are used to account for assets that are held in a 
trustee or fiduciary capacity such as utility deposits, pension plan assets, assets held 
per trust agreements, and similar arrangements. 
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TOWN OF SPIRO 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
PAGE 5 (Unaudited) 

A FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN AS A WHOLE 

Net Position-Modified Cash Basis 

TOWN OF SPIRO'S NET POSITION 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total 

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 
Current and other assets 250,072 178,176 400,747 553,234 650,819 731,410 
Noncurrent restricted assets 0 0 1,404,836 1,749,137 1,404,836 1,749,137 
Capital Assets 1,407,100 1,453,959 5,298,539 3,900,020 6,705,639 5,353,979 

Total Assets 1,657,172 1,632,135 7,104,122 6,202,391 8,761,294 7,834,526 

Long term liabilities 0 0 1,195,730 438,908 1,195,730 438,908 
Other liabilities 5,712 4,688 1,004 540 6,716 5,228 

Total Liabilities 5,712 4,688 1,196,734 439,448 1,202,446 444,136 

Net Position: 
Net Invesment in capital assets 1,407,100 1,453,959 4,102,809 3,461,112 5,509,909 4,915,071 
Restricted 111,559 60,572 0 0 111,559 60,572 
Unrestricted 132,801 112,916 1,804,579 2,301,831 1,937,380 2,414,747 

Total Net Position 1,651,460 1,627,447 5,907,388 5,762,943 7,558,848 7,390,390 

The Town's combined net position, resulting from modified cash basis transactions, 
increased from $7,390,390 to $7,558,858 between fiscal years 2013 and 2014. Looking at 
the net position and net expenses of governmental and business-type activities separately, 
governmental activities had an increase of $24,013 and business-type activities increased by 
$144,445. 

Net position of the Town's governmental activities increased to $1,651,460. However, 
$1,518,659 of those net position either are restricted as to the purposes they can be used 
for or are invested in capital assets (buildings, roads, bridges, and so on). Consequently, the 
unrestricted net position was only $132,801 at the end of this year. The net position of the 
Town's business-type activities increased to $5,907,388. However, $4,102,809 of the net 
position either are restricted as to the purposes they can be used for or are invested in 
capital assets (buildings, electric, water, sewer, and so on). Consequently, the unrestricted 
net position was $1,804,579 at the end of this year. 
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TOWN OF SPIRO 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
PAGE 6 (Unaudited) 

TOWN OF SPIRO'S CHANGES IN NET POSmON 

Goyernmental Actjvjtjes DY~iog~li~D:lli: A'1IY.itigii Iml 
.2.!!li 2l!ll .2.!!li 2l!ll .2.!!li 2l!ll 

Revenues: 
Program Revenues: 

Fees, fines and 
charges for services 85,512 7S,156 2,286,383 2,266,455 2,371,895 2,341,611 

Operating grants 
and contributions 43,638 53,166 43,638 53,166 

Capital grants 
and contributions 197,SOO 197,SOO 

General revenues: 
Sales tax 502,389 486,218 502,389 486,218 
Use tax 30,372 31,333 30,372 31,333 
Franchise tax 25,663 23,662 25,663 23,662 
Cigarette tax 5,959 6,408 5,959 6,408 
Intergovt. Revenue 37,863 36,128 37,863 36,128 
Investment earnings 40S 435 9,169 10,508 9,574 10,943 
Gain (loss) on sale of assets (2,117) (346) (2,463) 
Miscellaneous 24 230 24 941 28,366 27719 52,596 52,660 

Total revenues 951414 737 447 2,323,572 2,304,682 3,274,986 3,042,129 
Expenses: 
General government 
and administration 45,550 53,302 45,550 S3,302 

Public safety 337,692 320,779 337,692 320,779 
Transportation 174,000 169,932 174,000 169,932 
Cultural and recreational 22,192 23,463 22,192 23,463 
Interest on long term debt 
Electric 1,893,260 1,734,0S7 1,893,260 1,734,057 
Water and Sewer 503,475 512,260 503,475 512,260 
Sanitation 130,3S9 131 737 130,359 131 737 

Total expenses S79 435 567 476 2,527,093 2,378,054 3,106,528 2,945,531 
Increases in net position 
before transfers 371,979 169,971 (203,521) (73,372) 168,458 96,599 

Transfers (347,966) (191,963) 347,966 191,963 
Net position - July 1 1,627,447 1,649,439 5,762,943 S,644,352 7,390,390 7,293,791 
Net position - June 30 1,651,460 1,627,447 S,907,388 s,762,943 7,558,848 7,390,390 

~Qvgrnmental Activities 

To aid in the understanding of the Statement of Activities, some additional explanation is 
given. Of particular interest is the format that is significantly different from a typical 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Balance. You will notice that 
expenses are listed in the first column, with revenues from that particular program reported 
to the right. The result is a Net (Expense)/Revenue. This type of format highlights the 
relative financial burden of each of the functions on the Town's taxpayers. It also identifies 
how much each function draws from the general revenues or if it is self-financing through 
fees and grants or contributions. All other governmental revenues are reported as general. 
It is important to note that all taxes are classified as general revenue, even if restricted for a 
specific purpose. 
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For the year ended June 30, 2014, total expenses for governmental activities, resulting 
from modified cash basis transactions, amounted to $579,435. Of these total expenses, 
taxpayers and other general revenues funded $276,798 while those directly benefiting 
from the program funded $85,512 from charges for services, and $241,138 from grants 
and other contributions. 

Business-Type Activities 

In reviewing the business-type activities' net (expense)/revenue resulting from modified 
cash basis transactions of $(240,710), the water and sewer activities need to be examined 
more closely. The water and sewer service activities reported net (expense) of $(15,929) 
and $(7,021), respectively. The water and sewer departments are burdened with combined 
debt interest expense of $16,009 and depreciation expense of approximately $220,128. 
The electric activities managed net (expense) of $(206,919) while the sanitation was close 
to breakeven with a net expense of $(10,841). In arriving at the business type activity 
expenses the clerical expenses of $114,635 and administration expenses of $181,269 are 
allocated based on each activities expenses to the total. 

A FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN'S FUNDS 

Certain funds experienced noteworthy changes from the prior year and are highlighted 
as follows: 

• On the modified cash basis of accounting, the General Fund reported revenues, 
and net transfers of $512,839 and expenditures of $495,134 resulting in an 
increase in fund balance of $17,705. 

• Revenues decreased over the prior year by $8,054. However, general fund 
expenditures decreased over the prior year by $6,695. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

Over the course of the year, the Town Council revised the General Fund budget at 
various times. The final adjusted budget, however, was consistent with the original 
budget and the prior year actual. For the year ended June 30, 2014, General Fund 
expenditures were $85,898 under final appropriations, while actual resources available 
for appropriation were $29,113 over the final budgeted amount. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Caoital Assets-Modified Cash Basis 

At June 30, 2014, the Town had $1,407,100 invested in capital assets, net of 
depreciation, including police and fire equipment, buildings, and park facilities. This 
represents a net decrease of $46,859, or 3.22 percent, under last year. The Public 
Works Authority had $5,298,539 invested in capital assets, net of depreciation including 
the electric, water, and sewer systems and buildings. This represents a net increase of 
$1,398,519 or 35.86 percent, over last year. 

This year's more significant capital assets additions include: 

This year's more significant capital assets additions include: 

General Fund - Street Buildings - Dog Pound 
General Fund - Street Improvements - Street Overlay 
General Fund - Street Vehicles - 1997 GMC Top Kick Truck 
General Fund - Park Improvements - Ward Lake Walking Trail 

Muncipal Improvement Authority - Sewer CIP - RD Sewer Project 
Muncipal Improvement Authority - Electric Improvements - Electric System Project 
Muncipal Improvement Authority - Water CIP - Water Plant Clarifier 

Capital Assets at Year-end 
Net of Accumulated Depreciation 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total 
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 

Land 78,204 78,204 18,100 18,100 96,304 
Const. In Progress 0 0 1,648,700 176,384 1,648,700 
Buildings 189,303 186,554 21,594 22,669 210,897 
Equipment 98,561 134,923 85,137 98,280 183,698 
Infrastructure 1,041,032 1,054,278 3,525,008 3,584,587 4,566,040 
Total 1,407,100 1,453,959 5,298,539 3,900,020 6,705,639 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
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Long-Term Debt-Modified Cash Basis 

At June 30, 2014, the Town had $1,195,730 in long term debt arising from modified 
cash basis transactions compared to $438,908 at June 30, 2013. At June 30, 2014, $0 
of the debt is related to governmental activities and $1,195,730 is related to business­
type activities. (See table below). The overall increase in debt is 272.24 percent of the 
prior year balance. See the notes to financial statements (Note 2.D.) for future debt 
service and debt service requirements. 

Primary Government Long-Term Debt -- Modified Cash Basis 

2013 2014 

Governmental debt: $ $ 

Business-type debt: 
Series 2002 Small Community SRF Note 438,908 400,731 
RECD 794 999 

Total business-type debt 
Total all debt $ 

438,908 
438/iOs 

1,195,730 
~ 1,195,730 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES 

The Town's elected officials and staff considers many factors in setting the 2014-2015 
budget, tax rates and service rates being the main sources and personal services and 
utility costs being the main uses of funds. The Town plans to continue wastewater 
system improvements in the next year. The funds will consist of a $950,000 grant and 
$1,422,277 the remainder of $2,261,000 loan thru Rural Utilities Service (RUS) of the 
USDA Rural Development. 

CONTACTING THE TOWN'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with 
a general overview of the Town's finances and to demonstrate the Town's accountability 
for the money it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need additional 
financial information, contact the Town Clerk's office at 131 S. Main, Spiro, Oklahoma or 
telephone at (918) 962-2477. 
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TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - MODIFIED CASH BASIS 

JUNE 30, 2014 

ASSETS 

Current Assets: 
Cash, and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Due from other funds 
Total curent assets 

Noncurrent Assets: 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
Capital assets (Note 2.C.): 

Land and construction in progress 
Other capital assets. net of accumulated 

Total noncurent assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities: 
Payroll truces payable 
Due to other funds 
Due within one year 

Total curent liabilities 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Long term liabilities (Note 2.D.) 
Notes payable 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

NET POSITION 

Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted for: 
CDBG 
Hunting & Fishing 
Nutrition 
Cemetery Care 

Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

Primary Government 

Governmental 
Activities 

$185,778 
53,960 
10,334 

250,072 

78,204 
1,328,896 
1,407,100 

1,657,172 

665 
5,047 

5,712 

0 

5,712 

1,407,100 

47,442 
55,496 

460 
8,161 

132,801 

$1,651,460 

Business-Type 
Activities 

$113,610 
258,063 

29,074 
400,747 

1,404,836 

1,666,800 
3 631,739 
6,703,375 

7 104,122 

1,004 

111 900 
112,904 

1,083 830 
1,083,830 

1,196,734 

4,102,809 

1,804,579 

$5,907,388 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Total 

$299,388 
312,023 

39,408 
650,819 

1,404,836 

1,745,004 
4,960 635 
8,110,475 

8,761 294 

1,669 
5,047 

111,900 
118,616 

1,083,830 
1,083,830 

I 202,446 

5,509,909 

47,442 
55,496 

460 
8,161 

1,937,380 

$7,558,848 



TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES-MODIFIED CASH BASIS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

Program Revenues 
Operating Capital Net 

Charges for Grants and Grants and (Expense)/ 
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Revenue 

Primary Government: 
Governmental Activities 

General Government: 
General Government $37,838 $1,575 (36,263) 
Clerical 7,712 2,314 (5,398) 
Total general government 45,550 3,889 0 0 (41,661) 

Public Safety: 
Fire 57,175 2,075 4,474 (50,626) 
Law Enforcement 231,961 75,824 (156,137) 
Nutrition Program 48,001 39,164 (8,837) 

Civil defense 555 (555) 
Total Public safety 337,692 77,899 43,638 0 (216,155) 

Transportation: 
Streets 174,000 (174,000) 
Total transportation 174,000 (174,000) 

Cultural, parks and recreation 
Parks 20,645 3,312 (17,333) 
Library 1,547 (l,547) 
Cemetery Care 0 412 412 
Total cultural, parks and recreation 22,192 3,724 (18,468) 

Capital Projects 197,500 197,500 

Total governmental activities 579,435 85,512 43,638 197,500 (252,785) 

Business-type activities: 
Electric 1,893,260 1,686,341 (206,919) 
Water 274,219 258,289 (15,929) 
Sewer 229,256 222,235 (7,021) 
Sanitation 130,359 119,518 (10,841) 

Total business-type activities 2,527,093 2,286,383 (240,710) 

Total $3,106,528 $2,371,895 $43,638 $197,500 ($493,494) 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES-MODIFIED CASH BASIS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

Changes in Net Position 

General revenues: 
Taxes: 

Sales Tax 
Use Tax 
Franchise and public service taxes 
Cigarette Tax 

Intergovernmental revenue not restricted to specific programs 
Interest income 
Gain (loss) on sale of assets 
Miscellaneous 

Transfers internal activity 
Total general revenues and transfers 

Change in net position 

Net position-beginning 

Net position· ending 

Governmental 
($252,785) 

502,389 
30,372 
25,663 

5,959 
37,863 

405 
(2,117) 
24,230 

(347,966) 
276,798 

24,013 

1,627,447 

$1,651,460 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Business-Type 
($240,710) 

9,169 
(346) 

28,366 
347,966 
385,155 

144,445 

5,762,943 

$5,907,388 

Total 
($493,494) 

502,389 
30,372 
25,663 

5,959 
37,863 
9,574 

(2,463) 
52,596 

0 
661,953 

168,458 

7,390,390 

$7,558,848 



TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 
BALANCE SHEET - MODIFIED CASH BASIS 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 

JUNEJ0,2014 

Other Total 
General Steet Utility CDBG Governmental Governmental 

Fund Sales Tax Grant Funds Funds 

ASSETS 

Cash, and cash equivalents $120,518 $41,442 $11,158 185,118 
Investments 53,960 53,960 
Due from Court Fund I0,334 I0,334 

Total assets 130,912 0 41,442 11,118 $250,012 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Pa)Toll taxes payable 665 665 
DuetoSMIA 5,047 5,041 
Total Liabilities 5,112 0 0 0 5,112 

Fund Balances: 
Restricted for: 
CDBG 41,442 47,442 
Hunting & Fishing 55,496 55,496 
Nutrition Program 460 460 
Cemctery Care 8,161 8,161 

Assigned 125,200 1,601 132,801 
Unre~ncted 0 
Total Fund Balances 125,200 0 41,442 11,118 244,360 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $130,912 $0 $47,442 $71,118 

Reconciliation to Statement ofNet Positinn: 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities of$ 2,818,405, net of accumulated depreciation of 
$1,411,305 are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in funds 1,401,100 

Net position of governmental activities $1,651,460 

See accompan~ng notes to the financial statements. 
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TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

MODIFIED CASH BASIS 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

General Steet Utility 
Fund Sales Tax 

Revenues: 
Taxes 229,457 334,926 
Intergovernmental 42,337 
Charges for services 3,650 
Fines and forfeitures 75,824 
Licenses and pennits 2,314 
Interest income 189 
Miscellaneous 22,050 

Total Revenues 375,821 334,926 

Expenditures: 
Current 

General Government: 
Clerk 7,555 
Municipal Court 4,800 
Attorney 4,500 
General Government 33,051 

Public Safety: 
Police 209,331 
Fire 42,370 
PD Control Substance 

Street and Public Works: 
Streets 124,676 

Health & Welfare: 
Nutrition 

Culture and Recreation: 
Parks & Recreation 5,000 
Library 1,547 
Hunting & Fishing 
Cemetery Care 

Capital Outlay 56,512 
Debt Service 

Total Expenditures 489,342 0 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (113,521) 334,926 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfers in 137,018 
Transfers out (5,792) (334,926) 
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) 131,226 (334,926) 

Net change in fund balances 17,705 0 

Fund balances· beginning 107,495 0 

Fund balances ·ending 125,200 0 

Reconciliation to the Statement of Activities: 

Net change in fund balances ·total governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities fife different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental activities 
report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the life of the assets; 

Capital asset purchases capitalized 
Depreciation expense 

CDBG 
Grant 

197,500 

197,500 

0 
197,500 

446,534 
(596,592) 
(150,058) 

47,442 

0 

47,442 

The net effect of various transactions involving capital assets (i.e. sales, trade ins, and contributions) 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

39,164 

3,312 
216 

2,592 
45,284 

45,351 

45,351 
(67) 

5,792 

5,792 
5,725 

65,993 

71,718 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

564,383 
279,001 

3,650 
75,824 

5,626 
405 

24,642 
953,531 

1,555 
4,800 
4,500 

33,051 

209,331 
42,370 

0 

124,676 

45,351 

5,000 
1,547 

0 
0 

56,512 
0 

534,693 
418,838 

589,344 
(937,310) 
(347,966) 

70,872 

173,488 

244,360 

$70,872 

56,512 
(101,254) 

(2,117) 
(46,859) 

$24,013 



TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - MODIFIED CASH BASIS 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
JUNE 30, 2014 

ASSETS 

Current Assets: 
Cash, and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Due from other funds 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent Assets: 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted investments 
Capital Assets 

Land and construction-in-progress 
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities: 
Payroll taxes payable 
Long Term Liabilities - current portion 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Long Term Liabilities - long term portion 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

NET POSITION 

Net investment in capital assets 
Unrestricted 
Total net position 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 

19 

Spiro Municipal 
Improvement 

Authority 

$113,610 
258,063 

29,074 
400,747 

195,446 
1,209,390 

1,666,800 
3,631,739 
6,703,375 

7,104,122 

1,004 
111,900 
112,904 

1,083,830 
1,083,830 

1,196,734 

4,102,809 
1,804,579 
5,907,388 



TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 
MODIFIED CASH BASIS PROPRIETARY FUND 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

Spiro Municipal 
Improvement Authority 

Operating Revenues: 
Charges for services: 

Electric charges 
Water charges 
Sewer charges 
Garbage collections 
Penalty and late fees 
Water and sewer taps 
Miscellaneous 
Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses: 
Administration operations 
Clerk operations 
Electric operations 
Water operations 
Sewer operations 
Sanitation operations 
Depreciation 
Total Operating Expenses 

Net Operating Income (Loss) 

Non-Operating Revenue (Expense): 
Investment income 
Interest expense and fiscal agent fees 
Gain (loss) on sale of assets 
Total Non-Operating Revenue (Expense) 

Net Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers 

Transfers In 
Transfers Out 

Changes in net position 

Total Net Position-Beginning 
Total Net Position-Ending 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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1,647,485 
250,091 
214,868 
119,518 
49,822 

4,600 
28,366 

2,314,750 

181,269 
114,635 

1,595,690 
173,902 
111,938 
113,522 
220,128 

2,511,084 

(196,334) 

9,169 
(16,009) 

(346) 
(7,186) 

(203,520) 

931,518 
(583,553) 

144,445 

5,762,943 
$5,907,388 



TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS-MODIFIED CASH BASIS 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERA TING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from customers 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTMTIES: 
Increase in due from other funds 
Increase in payroll taxes payables 
Transfers to other funds 
Transfers from other funds 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Sale of capital assets 
Note Proceeds 
Purchases of capital assets 
Principal paid on capital debit 
Interest and fiscal agent fees paid on capital debit 

Net Cash Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTMTIES 
Interest and dividends 
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivelents 

Balance- beginning of the year 
Balance- end of the year 

Reconciliation of operating income Qoss) to net cash provided 
by operating activities: 
Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided 
(used) by operating activities: 
Depreciation expense 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 

21 

Spiro Municipal 
Improvement Authority 

$2,314,750 
(1,960, 773) 

(330,183) 
23,794 

(14,042) 
464 

(583,553) 
931,518 
334,387 

727 
838,723 

(1,619,720) 
(81,901) 
(16,009) 

(878,180) 

9,169 
9,169 

(510,830) 

2,287,339 
$1,776,509 

($196,334) 

220,128 
$23,794 



TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - MODIFIED CASH BASIS 

FIDUCIARY FUND 

ASSETS 

Cash, and cash equivalents 
Investments 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Due to General 
Due to other funds 
Utility deposit liability 

Total liabilities 

JUNE 30, 2014 
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Agency 
Funds 

$28,073 
175,700 

$203,773 

$10,334 
24,027 

169,412 
$203,773 



TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

As discussed further in Note 1.C, these financial statements are presented on a modified 
cash basis of accounting. This modified basis of accounting differs from accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting 
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The 
significant accounting and reporting policies and practices used by the Town are 
described below. 

Also, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, the town implemented the new financial 
reporting requirements of GASB statement 34. As a result, an entirely new financial 
presentation format has been implemented as described in Note l .B following. 

1.A. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY 

The Town's financial reporting entity is composed of the following: 

Primary Government: Town of Spiro 
Component Units: Spiro Municipal Improvement Authority 

In determining the financial reporting entity, the Town complies with the provisions of 
GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity. 

BLENDED COMPONENT UNIT 

A blended component unit is a separate legal entity that meets the component unit 
criteria. In addition, the blended component unit's governing body is the same or 
substantially the same as the Town Council, or the component unit provides services 
entirely to the Town. The component unit's funds are blended into those of the Town by 
appropriate fund type to constitute the primary government presentation. The blended 
component unit is presented below: 

Component Unit 

Spiro Municipal 
Improvement Authority 

Brief Description/Inclusion Criteria Fund Included In 

Created November 22, 1962 to finance, develop, and SMIA Enterprise 
operate the water, wastewater, and sanitation activities of the Fund 
Town. Current Town Board of Trustees serves as the entire 
governing body (Trustee of the Authority). Debt issued by 
Authority requires two-thirds approval of the board. 

The component units do not issue separately audited component unit financial statements. 
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TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

1.B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities display information about the 
reporting government as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity except 
for fiduciary funds. The statements distinguish between governmental and business-type 
activities. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, 
intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange revenues. Business-type activities 
are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties of goods or services. 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which 
is considered to be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing 
a separate set of self-balancing accounts that constitutes its assets, liabilities, fund equity, 
revenues, and expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized into two major categories: 
governmental and proprietary. The Town presently has two fiduciary funds that account 
for municipal court bonds and utility customer deposits. An emphasis is placed on major 
funds within the governmental and proprietary categories. A fund is considered major if 
it is the primary operating fund of the Town or meets the following criteria: 

a. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual 
governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total 
for all funds of that category or type, and 

b. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual 
governmental fund or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding 
total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined. 

The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below: 

Governmental Funds 

General Fund 

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the Town and always classified as a 
major fund. It is used to account for all activities except those legally or administratively 
required to be accounted for in other funds. 
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TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

Special Revenue Funds 

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of the specific revenue 
sources that are either legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes or 
designated to finance particular functions or activities of the Town. 

Capital Project Funds 

Capital project funds area used to account for resources restricted for the acquisition or 
construction of specific capital projects or items. The reporting entity presently includes 
no capital project fund. 

Proprietary Funds 

Enterprise Fund 

Enterprise funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to the general 
public. These activities are financed primarily by user charges, and the measurement of 
financial activity focuses on net income measurement similar to the private sector. The 
reporting entity includes the following blended component unit enterprise fund that is 
reported as follows: 

Fund 

Spiro Municipal 
Improvement Authority 

Fiduciary Fund Types 

Agency Funds 

Brief Description 

Accounts for the activities of the public trust in providing electric, 
water, wastewater, and sanitation services to the public. 

Agency Funds account for assets held by the Town in a custodial capacity. The reporting 
entity includes two agency funds. The Municipal Court Fund used to account for court 
bonds and fees due to other governments and the Meter Deposit Fund used to account for 
customer utility deposits. Since agency funds are custodial in nature (i.e. assets equal 
liabilities), they do not involve the measurement ofresults of operations. 

1.C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS ON BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "how" transactions are recorded within the 
various financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when" transactions are 
recorded regardless of the measurement focus applied. 
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TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

MEASUREMENT FOCUS 

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, both 
governmental and business-like activities are presented using the economic resources 
measurement focus, within the limitations of the modified cash basis of accounting, as 
defined in item b below. 

In the funds financial statements, the "current financial resources" measurement focus or 
the "economic resources" measurement focus, as applied to the modified cash basis of 
accounting, is used as appropriate: 

a. All governmental funds utilize a "current financial resources" measurement focus. 
Only current financial assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance 
sheets. Their operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable 
financial resources during a given period. These funds use fund balance as their 
measure of available spendable financial resources at the end of the period. 

b. The proprietary fund utilizes an "economic resources" measurement focus. The 
accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of 
operating income, changes in net position (or cost recovery), financial position, 
and cash flows. All assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent, 
financial, or nonfinancial) associated with their activities are reported. 
Proprietary fund equity is classified as net position. 

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities and the 
fund financial statements, governmental, business-like, and each major fund and the 
aggregate remaining fund information are presented using a modified cash basis of 
accounting. This basis recognizes assets, liabilities, net position /fund equity, revenues, 
and expenditures/expenses when they result from cash transactions with a provision for 
depreciation in the government-wide statements, proprietary fund statements. This basis 
is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

As a result of the use of this modified cash basis of accounting, certain assets and their 
related revenues (such as accounts receivable and revenue for billed or provided services 
not yet collected) and certain liabilities and their related expenses (such as accounts 
payable and expenses for goods or services received but not yet paid, and accrued 
expenses and liabilities) are not recorded in these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

If the Town utilized the basis of accounting recognized as generally accepted, the fund 
financial statements for governmental funds would use the modified accrual basis of 
accounting, while the fund financial statements for proprietary fund types would use the 
accrual basis of accounting. All government-wide financials would be presented on the 
accrual basis of accounting. 

1.D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

For the purpose of financial reporting "cash and cash equivalents" includes all demand 
and savings accounts and certificates of deposit or short-term investments. Trust account 
investments in open-ended mutual funds shares are also considered cash equivalents. 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

The Town's modified cash basis of accounting reports capital assets resulting from cash 
transactions and reports depreciation where appropriate. The accounting treatment over 
property, plant, and equipment (capital assets) depends on whether the assets are used in 
governmental fund operations or proprietary fund and similar discretely presented 
component unit operations and whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund 
financial statements. 

Government-Wide Statements 
In the government-wide financial statements, capital assets arising from cash 
transactions are accounted for as assets in the Statement of Net Position. All capital 
assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual is 
unavailable. Estimated historical cost was used to value the majority of the assets 
acquired prior to July 1, 2003. Prior to July 1, 2003, governmental funds' 
infrastructure assets were not capitalized. Infrastructure assets acquired since July 
1, 2003 are recorded at cost. 

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets arising from cash transactions is 
recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement of Activities, with accumulated 
depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Position. Depreciation is provided 
over the assets' estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of 
depreciation. The threshold of$1,000 is used to report capital assets. The range of 
estimated useful lives by type of asset is as follows: 

Land 
Buildings 
Equipment 
Utility property and improvements 
Infrastructure 
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NIA 
40 years 

5-20 years 
10-50 years 
25-50 years 



TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

Fund Financial Statements 
In the fund financial statements, capital assets arising from cash transactions 
acquired for use in governmental fund operations are accounted for as capital outlay 
expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets acquired for 
use in proprietary fund operations are accounted for the same as in the government­
wide statements. 

LONG-TERM DEBT 

All long-term debt arising from cash basis transactions to be repaid from governmental 
and business-type resources is reported as liabilities in the government-wide statements. 

Long-term debt arising from cash basis transactions of governmental funds is not 
reported as liabilities in the fund financial statements. The debt proceeds are reported as 
other financing sources and payment of principal and interest reported as expenditures. 
The accounting for proprietary funds is the same in the fund financial statements as the 
treatment in the government-wide statements. 

EQUITY CLASSIFICATION 

Government-Wide Statements 
Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components: 

a. Net investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets, including 
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the 
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowing 
that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvements of 
those assets and adjusted for any deferred inflows and outflows ofresources 
attributable to capital assets and related debt. 

b. Restricted - Consists ofrestricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred 
inflows or resources related to those assets, with restriction constraints 
placed on the use either by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, 
contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments; or (2) law 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

c. Unrestricted - Net amount of assets, deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the 
determination of net investment of capital assets or the restricted component 
of net position. 
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TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

It is the Town's policy to first use restricted net resources prior to the use of 
unrestricted net resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both 
restricted and unrestricted net resources are available. 

Fund Financial Statements 
Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Proprietary fund equity is 
classified the same as in the government-wide statements. 

1. E. REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND EXPENSES 

PROGRAM REVENUES 

In the Statement of Activities, modified cash basis revenues that are derived directly from 
each activity or from parties outside the Town's taxpayers are reported as program 
revenues. The Town has the following program revenues in each activity: 

General Government 
Public Safety 

Transportation 
Cultural, Parks and Rec. 

Licenses and permits. 
Fine revenue and Fire run revenue; operating and capital grants, 
animal control licenses. 
Streets commercial vehicle and gasoline excise tax shared by the State 
Fishing licenses, Parks receipts and concessions or rental, operating and 
capital grants 

All other governmental revenues are reported as general. All taxes are classified as 
general revenue even if restricted for a specific purpose. 

OPERATING REVENUE AND EXPENSES 

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds result from providing services and 
producing and delivering goods and/or services. They also include all revenues and 
expenses not related to capital and related financing, noncapital financing, or investing 
activities. 

1.F. INTERNAL AND INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITIES 

In the process of aggregating the financial information for the government-wide 
Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities, some amounts reported as 
interfund activity and balances in the fund financial statements have been eliminated. 
See Note 2.E. for details of interfund transactions, including receivables and payables at 
year-end. 
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TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Interfund activity, if any, within and among the governmental and proprietary fund 
categories is reported as follows in the fund financial statements: 

1. Interfund loans-Those related to goods and services type transactions are 
classified as "due to and from other funds". Short term interfund loans are 
reported as "interfund receivables and payables." Long-term interfund loans 
(noncurrent portion) are reported as "advances from and to other funds." 
Interfund receivables and payables between funds within governmental activities 
are eliminated in the Statement of Net Position. 

2. Interfund services-Sales or purchases of goods and services between funds are 
reported as revenues and expenditures/expenses. 

3. Interfund reimbursements-Repayments from funds responsible for certain 
expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not reported as 
reimbursements but as adjustments to expenditures/expenses in the respective 
funds. 

4. Interfund transfers-Flow of assets from one fund to another where repayment is 
not expected are reported as transfers in and out. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Interfund activity and balances, if any, are eliminated or reclassified in the government­
wide financial statements as follows: 

I. Internal balances-Amounts reported in the fund financial statements as interfund 
receivables and payables are eliminated in the governmental and business-type 
activities columns of the Statement of Net Position, except for the net residual 
amounts due between governmental and business-type activities, which are 
reported as Internal Balances. 

2. Internal activities-Amounts reported as interfund transfers in the fund financial 
statements are eliminated in the government-wide Statement of Activities except 
for the net amount of transfers between governmental and business-type activities, 
which are reported as Transfers--Intemal Activities. The effects of interfund 
services between funds, if any, are not eliminated in the Statement of Activities. 

3. Primary government and component unit activity and balances-Resource flows 
between the primary government (the Town and Municipal Improvement 
Authority) are reported as if they were external transactions and are classified 
separately from internal balances and activities within the primary government. 

30 



TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

1.G. FUND EQUITY 

The following fund balance classifications describe the relative strength of the spending 
constraints placed on the purposes for which resources can be used: 

Nonspendable fund balance - amounts that are not in a spendable form (such as 
inventory) or are required to be maintained intact; 

Restricted fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by their 
providers (Such as grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government), 
through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation; 

Committed fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposed by a 
government itself, using its highest level of decision-making authority; to be 
reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the 
government takes the same highest level action to remove or change the 
constraint; 

Assigned fund balance - amounts a government intends to use for a specific 
purpose; intent can be expressed by the governing body or by an official or body 
to which the governing body delegates the authority; 

Unassigned fund balance - amounts that are available for any purpose; positive 
amounts are reported only in the general fund. 

Town Council establishes (and modifies or rescinds) fund balance commitments by 
passage of an ordinance or resolution. This is typically done through adoption and 
amendment of the budget. A fund balance commitment is further indicated in the budget 
document as a designation or commitment of the fund (such as for special incentives). 
Assigned fund balance is established by City Council through adoption or amendment of 
the budget as intended for specific purpose (such as the purchase of fixed assets, 
construction, debt services, or for other purposes). 

1.H. USE OF STATEMENTS 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the other comprehensive basis 
of accounting (OCBOA) used by the Town requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures (such as estimated 
useful lives in determining depreciation expense); accordingly, actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 
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NOTE 2. DETAIL NOTES-TRANSACTIONS CLASSES/ACCOUNTS 

The following notes present detail information to support the amounts reported in the 
basic financial statements for its various assets, liabilities, equity, revenues, and 
expenditures/expenses. 

2.A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK-DEPOSITS 

The table presented below is designed to disclose the level of custodial credit risk 
assumed by the Town based upon how its deposits were insured or secured with collateral 
at June 30, 2014. The comparison relates to the primary government only. The 
categories of custodial credit risk are defined as follows: 

Category 1--

Category 2--

Category 3--

Insured by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or 
collateralized with securities held by the Town (or public trust) 
or by its agent in its name. 

Uninsured but collateralized with securities held by the pledging 
financial institution's trust department or agent in the Town's name. 

Uninsured and uncollateralized; or collateralized with securities 
held by the pledging financial institution or by its trust department 
or agent but not in the Town's name; or properly collateralized 
with no written and approved collateral agreement. 

Primary Government 

Custody Credit Risk C,'ategnry 

Type o:fDeposits 

Insured deposits 
Uninsured deposits 

Collateralized 
Uncollateralized 

Total Deposits 
Petty cash 

Balance 

953,270 

1,366,732 

2,320,002 

Total Bank 
I 

953,270 

953,270 

2 

1,366,732 

1,366,732 

Reconciliation to Government-Wide Statements of Net Position: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Agency fund cash, including time deposit 

(not included in goven1ment wide statetnent) 

"Restricted For Management's Use Only" 32 

3 

Total 
Carrying 

Value 

2,219,270 

750 

2,220,020 

2,016,247 

203,773 

2,220,020 
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INVESTMENTS AND CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK 

Investments are limited by State law to the following: 

a. Direct obligations of the U.S. Government, its agencies and instrumentalities to 
which the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government is pledged, or obligations 
to the payment of which the full faith and credit of the State is pledged. 

b. Certificates of deposit or savings accounts that are either insured or secured with 
acceptable collateral with in-state financial institutions, and fully insured 
certificates of deposit or savings accounts in out-of-state financial institutions. 

c. With certain limitation, negotiable certificates of deposit, prime bankers 
acceptances, prime commercial paper, and repurchase agreements with certain 
limitations. 

d. County, municipal, or school district tax-supported debt obligations, bond or 
revenue anticipation notes, money judgments, or bond or revenue anticipation 
notes of public trusts whose beneficiary is a county, municipality, or school 
district. 

e. Notes or bonds secured by mortgage or trust deed insured by the Federal Housing 
Administrator and debentures issued by the Federal Housing Administrator, and 
in obligations of the National Mortgage Association. 

f. Money market funds regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission and 
in which investments consist of the investments mentioned in the previous 
paragraphs a, b, c, and d. 

For purposes of custodial credit risk, the certificates of deposit are included in the 
preceding deposits risk analysis. 

2.B. RESTRICTED ASSETS 

The amounts reported as restricted assets are composed of amounts held by the Municipal 
Authority as follows: utility deposits (refunded upon termination of service or applied to 
final bill) of$169,412; cash and cash equivalents accumulated from the 2% restricted 
sales tax for water, sewer, and street and alley system improvements in the amount of 
$1,151,547; cash and cash equivalents from the SMIA USDA-RD short lived assets 
replacement restricted for the RD sewer project in the amount of$224,133; cash and cash 
equivalents for the Debt Service Reserve account for the RD sewer project in the amount 
of$29,076; cash and cash equivalents from the SMIA USDA-RD construction restricted 
for the RD sewer project in the amount of$80. 
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2.C. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity, resulting from modified cash basis transactions, for the fiscal year. 

Balance at 
June30 201'i Aff..ditieu.~ 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land 78,204 0 
Construction-in-progress 0 0 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 78 204 0 
Other capital assets: 

Buildings 317,076 10,165 
Vehicles 412,799 7,900 
Machinery and equipment 291,378 995 
Infrastructure 1,672,171 37,452 

Total other capital assets at historical cost 2 693 424 56,512 
Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Buildings 130,522 7,416 
Vehicles 347,851 27,833 
Machinery and equipment 221,403 15,307 
Infrastructure 617,893 50 698 

Total accumulated depreciation 1317669 101.254 
Other capital assets. net 1 375,755 ~44,742l 

Governmental activities capital assets, net 1 453,959 ~44,742~ 

Business-type activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land 18,100 0 
Construction-in-progress 176,384 1,472,316 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 194,484 1 472,316 
Other capital assets; 
Buildings 79,533 I,230 
Machinery and equipment 299,053 7,650 
Vehicles 126,677 4,400 
Utility property & improvements 7,975,528 134,124 

Total other capital assets at historical cost 8,480 791 147,404 
Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Buildings 56,864 2,305 
Machinery and equipment 215,025 17,950 
Vehicles 112,425 6.170 
Utility property & improvements 4 390 941 193 703 

Total accumulated depreciation 4,775 255 220 128 
Other capital assets, net 3,705 536 !72!724} 

Business-type activities capital assets, net 3,900,020 1,399,592 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows in the Statement of Activities: 

Primary Government 
Government Activities: 

Clerk 
General Government 
Police 
Fire 
Street 
Nutrition 
Parks and Recreation 
Civil Defense 
Hunting & Fishing 

Total depreciation expense for governmental activities 

Business-Type Activities: 
Clerk 
Electric 
Water 
Sewer 
Total depreciation expense for business-type activities 
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Dedu£tif1.U.!' 

0 
0 
0 

0 
(8,300) 
(1,435) 

0 

!9.7352 

0 
(6,183) 
(1,435) 

0 
{7,618l 
!2.117} 
~2,117) 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 

(4,600) 
0 

(4,600l 

0 
0 

(3,527) 
0 

!3,527l 
!I,073} 
{l,073) 

158 
287 

17,829 
14,805 
49,324 

2,650 
14,165 

555 
1 481 

101,254 

2,243 
60,151 
73,776 
83,958 

220,128 

Balance at 
June 30, 2011, 

78,204 
0 

78,204 

327,241 
412,399 
290,938 

1,709,623 
2 740,201 

137,938 
369,501 
235,275 
668,591 

1,411,305 
I 328 896 
1,407,100 

18,100 
1,648,700 
1,666,800 

80,763 
306,703 
126,477 

8 109,652 
8,623,595 

59,169 
232,975 
115,068 

4,584 644 
4,991,856 
3,631,739 
5,298,539 



TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

2.D. LONG-TERM DEBT 

The reporting entity's long-term debt arising from cash transactions is segregated 
between the amounts to be repaid from governmental activities and amounts to be repaid 
from business-type activities. 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 

As of June 30, 2014, the long-term debt, arising from cash transactions, payable from 
proprietary fund resources consisted of the following: 

NOTES PAY ABLE: 

Series 2002 Small Community Clean Water SRF Promissory Note 
to the Oklahoma Water Resources Board in the amount of$ 795,000 
with an initial interest rate of 2.495%. The interest payments are to 
be made semiannually beginning September 15, 2002, with the 
principal payments to commence the earlier of project completion or 
September 15, 2003, and continue repayment based on the amortization 
schedule provided by the OWRB. The Note is scheduled to mature 20 
years from the project completion or approximately December 2003. 

Note due to Rural Utilities Service Department of Agriculture when 
fully funded will be in the amount of$2,261,000. The note is for the 
purpose of providing a portion of the cost of acquiring and constructing 
of Spiro Municipal Improvement Authority waste water system 
improvements. Funding of the note began December 13, 2013 with 
advances totaling $838,723 and regular principal payments of$43,742 
thru year-end. The note has a fixed interest rate of2.75% with 480 
monthly payments of principal and interest of$7,778 due 
December 2053. 

Total Note Payable Outstanding 

Current portion 
Non-current portion 
Total Notes Payable 

$ 400,731 

794 999 
1.195,730 

$ 111,900 
1.083,830 

$ 1 195.730 

The series 2002 promissory note is secured by a pledge and assignment of revenues 
of the water, sanitary sewer, electric, and solid waste disposal systems pursuant to the 
terms of the Clean Water SRF Loan Agreement and a security agreement dated June 
I, 2002. The Rural Utilities Service promissory note is secured by a pledge and 
assignment of revenues of the water, sanitary sewer, electric, and solid waste disposal 
systems pursuant to the loan resolution agreement. 
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CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT 

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2014: 

Amount Due 
Balance Balance Within One 

Ti'.2e of Debt Juli: l,2013 Additions Reductions June 30, 2014 Year 
Business-Type Activities: 

Notes Payable 438,908 838,723 81,901 1,195,730 111,900 
Total Business-Type Activities: 438,908 838,723 81,901 1,195,730 111,900 

DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY 

The annual debt service requirements to maturity, including principal and interest, for 
long-term debt as of June 30, 2014, are as follows: 

Year Ended 
June 30, 

2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 

2020-2024 
Total 

Notes Payable 
Princi2aI Interest 
111,899.62 32,662.88 
115,107.80 29,454.70 
118,408.15 26,154.35 
121,803.23 22,759.27 
125,295.81 19,266.69 
603,215.03 40,811.06 

1,195,729.64 171,108.95 

DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE 

The Spiro Municipal Improvement Authority's OWRB Promissory Note and Rural 
Utilities Service Promissory Note are collateralized by the revenue of the Spiro 
Municipal Improvement Authority Sewer System. The agreement contains provisions 
which require the SMIA to maintain pledged revenue, of at least 125% of the annual debt 
service. As of June 30, 2014 the Authority's debt service coverage percentage is 254% 
which meets the promissory note requirement. 

2.E. NON-COMMITMENT DEBT 

Original Debt 

Spiro Municipal Improvement Authority: 
$2,300,000 

Project 

(I) SMIA Series 2008 
(Spiro Schools Project) 
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Princi2al 
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(!) The Spiro Municipal Improvement Authority Lease Revenue Notes, Series 2008 
(Spiro Public Schools Project) were issued April 3, 2008, to provide a portion of the 
funds required for the construction of an education facility for the Independent School 
District #2 of Leflore County, Oklahoma (Spiro Public Schools). The Authority and 
the District have entered into a lease agreement whereby the District will make 
annual lease payments to the Authority. Payment of principal and interest on the 
notes is to be made from the lease payments and upon completion of the lease title to 
the improvements will vest with the District. Other revenue and assets of the 
Authority are not pledged for note purposes and accordingly, the Authority is not 
liable for this debt. The initial lease agreement proceeds began August 15, 2008. 

2.F. INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS 

INTERFUND BALANCE 

Balances due from and due to consist of $10,334 due from Agency fund to General fund, 
$24,027 due from Agency fund to Proprietary fund - the Spiro Municipal Improvement 
Authority, and $5,04 7 due from General fund to Proprietary fund 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

Transfers between funds of the primary government for the year ended June 30, 2014, 
were as follows: 

MAJOR Fl..JNDS: 

GENERAL: 
Spiro :rvfunicipal Improven'lent Authority 
Street Utility Sales Tax Fund 
Nonmajor governn"J.en.tal 

Total General FUI'ld 

s·rREET UTILITY SALES TAX FUND: 
Spiro Municipal Improvement Authority 

CDBG GR.ANT: 
Spiro Municipal !1'1-iprovement Authority 

Total Enterprise Funds 

EN':rERPR.ISE FUNDS: 
Spiro Municipal Improvement Autb.ority: 
General Fund 
Street Utility Sales Tax Fund 
CDBGGrant 

Tot:al Enterprise Funds 

NONIVIA.TOR. F\JNDS: 
Nutrition: 

General Fund 
Total Nonmajor Funds 

GRAND TOTALS 
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TRANSFERS 
IN 

$ 99,567 
37~452 

137.019 

446,534 
446,534 

334,926 
596,592 
931,51 8 

5,792 

$ 1,520.863 

TRANSFERS 
OUT 

$ 

5,792 
5,792 

334,926 

596,592 
596,592 

99,567 
37,452 

446,534 
583,553 

$ 1,520,863 



TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

3. A. GRANTS AND CONTRACTS 

Rural Fire Defense Grant - The Town received a grant of $4,474 from the Oklahoma 
Department of Agriculture Forestry Services for fire calls. 

Kiamichi Area Nutrition Project - The Town of Spiro operates a local nutrition center that 
in conjunction with the funding provided by the Kiamichi Area Nutrition Project provides 
funds necessary for staff and technical assistance for staff activities pertaining to the 
program operation of the center. The Town of Spiro (Center Sponsor) and the Project will 
administer the center in accordance with state and federal rules outlined in the project 
application. The Town received$ 39,164 in funds for the center and expended $45,351 
for the year ended June 30, 2014. The program is based on the availability of funds from 
the Area Agency on Aging. 

Community Block Development Grant - The Town was awarded and received a grant 
from the Oklahoma Department of Commerce in the amount of$212,500 for matching 
funds to construct a 1.5 MGD reactor solids contract clarified pre-sedimentation basis 
and appurtenances as an improvement to the water treatment plant. Funds of$ I 97,500 
were expended and received in the 2013-14 fiscal year. The grant funds are recorded as 
special revenue receipts and transferred into the SMIA fund included in capital assets 
under construction in process. 

Rural Utilities Service - The Town received a grant of not more than $968, 100 from the 
United States of America acting thru the Rural Utilities Service, Department of 
Agricultural for improvement of the wastewater system. The grant will help defray the 
cost of the total waste water system project estimated at $3,229,100 and is in conjunction 
with a Joan from Rural Utilities Service of$2,261,000 that, as of the year-end, is partially 
advanced in the amount of $838,723. The grant will begin funding during the year 
ending June 30, 20 I 5 after the remaining available loan funds are advanced. 

3.B. COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT SALES TAX REVENUE 

The LeFiore County Board of Commissioners passed a resolution assessing a .25% sales 
tax for the benefit of the LeFiore County Fire Departments. The County began collecting 
the funds July 1, 2012 and remitting monthly into the funds designated by each County 
Fire Department and maintained under custody and control of the County Treasurer. In 
accordance with the resolution the funds can generally be used for construction and 
improvements, various approved equipment, fire training safety and education, and 
general maintenance and operation of the department. For the period beginning July 1, 
2013 thru June 30, 2014 the Town of Spiro Fire Department had a beginning balance of 
$28,034.88, the department has been appropriated $28,323.19 for its benefit and has 
expended $27,601.27 leaving a balance of$28,756.80 for future use. Funds requested 
must be used in accordance with County purchasing policies and procedures as outlined 
in the resolution. 
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3.C. EMPLOYEE PENSION AND OTHER BENEFIT PLANS 

The Town participates in the Employee Pension Plan as follows: 

Name of Plan/System 

Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund 

Type of Plan 

Multiple Employer - Defined 
Benefit Plan 

Oklahoma Firefighters Pension and Retirement Fund Cost Sharing Multiple Employer -
Defined Benefit Plan 

Defined Benefit Pension Plan - Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund 

A. Plan Description 

The Town contributes to the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund Employee 
Retirement System (O.M.R.F.), an agent multiple-employer public employee 
retirement system that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for 
governmental entities in the State of Oklahoma. The Town's payroll for 
employees covered by O.M.R.F. for the year ended June 30, 2014, was $488,966. 
The total payroll for the same period was $576,250. 

Eligibility Factors, Contribution Methods and Benefit Provisions 

Provision 

a. Eligibility 

b. Service 
- Credited service 

- Vesting 

c. Employee Contribution: 

d. Benefit Eligibility 

e. Normal Retirement Age 

f. Final Average Compensation 

g. Accrued Benefit 

OMRFPlan 

All regular, full time employees except police, firefighters, and other 
employees who are covered under an approved system 

The last period of continuous employment with the employer 
excluding any periods before the effective date of the plan specified 
in the adoption agreement. 
Credited service plus transferred service from other OMRF 
employers. 

3% of pay 

I 0 or more years of vesting service. 

Age 65 with 10 or more years of vesting service 

The average of the five highest consecutive years of salaries out of 
the last l 0 years of service. 

Plan A- 1.5% of final average compensation multiplied by the 
number of years of credited service. 
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h. Normal Retirement 
- Eligibility 

- Benefit: 

i. Early Retirement 
- Eligibility 

- Benefit: 

J. Termination Before Retirement Age 
- Before vesting 

- After vesting 

k. Disability Retirement 
- Eligibility 

- Benefit 

I. In-service Death 
- Before vesting 

- After vesting (married only) 

- After vesting (other participants) 

m. Payment Options 
-Normal form 

-Optional forms 

n. Cost of Living 

Termination of employment on or after normal retirement age. 

The accrued benefit payable immediately. 

Te1mination after age 55 with IO or more years of vesting service. 

The accrued benefit payable starting at normal retirement age, or the 
accrued benefit reduced 5% per year for commencement prior to 
normal retirement age. 

Return of employee contributions, if any, with interest. 

The accrued benefit payable starting at normal retirement age, or a 
reduced benefit payable starting at early retirement age. 

Total and permanent disability after I 0 or more years of service. 

The accrued benefit is payable upon disablement without reduction 
for early payment 

Return of employee contributions, if any, with interest 

50% of accrued benefit is payable to the spouse until death 
or remarriage 

50% of the accrued benefit is payable for 5 years certain. 

The normal form of payment of the accrued benefit is a 
monthly lifetime annuity with 5 years certain. 

Disability retirement benefits are paid only under the normal 
form. 

Other retirement benefits are available under actuarially 
equivalent optional forms: 

Joint and 50% survivor annuity 
Joint and 66-2/3''' last survivor annuity 
Joint and I 00% survivor annuity 

This plan has not elected the automatic post­
retirement cost-of-living adjustments. 
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B. Annual Pension Costs 

I. Current Year Contribution Information 

For the year ended June 30, 2014, the Town's annual pension cost of$46,842 was 
equal to the Town's required and actual contributions. 

2. Actuarial Assumptions: 

Date of Last Actuarial Valuation 

a. Actuarial Cost Method 

b. Rate of Return on Investments 

c. Projected Salary Increase 

d. Post Retirement Cost-of-Living 
Increase 

e. Inflation Rate 

f. Amortization Method of Unfunded 
Actuarial Accrued Liability 

g. Remaining Amortization Period 

h. Asset Valuation Method 

C. Trend Information 

Fiscal Annual 
Year Pension 

Ending Cost (APC) 

June 30, 2012 $30,540 
June 30, 2013 $29,199 
June 30, 2014 $32,174 

For Plan Year 
July I, 2014 

Entry age normal 

7.5% 

Rates by age 

None 

Separate inflation rate not 
available; inflation included in 
projected salary increase 

Level percentage of projected 
payroll 

None 

Actuarial value method 

Percentage 
ofAPC 

Contributed 

100% 
100% 
100% 
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Net 
Pension 

Obligation 

$0 
$0 
$0 
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FIREFIGHTER'S PENSION AND RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 

Volunteer firemen of the Town of Spiro, Oklahoma, participate in the Oklahoma 
Firefighters Pension and Retirement System. The plan covers all volunteer fireman 
hired before age 45 if they are working in a participating municipality. These firemen 
are not paid a salary. 

A. Eligibility Factors, Contribution Methods, and Benefit Provisions 

Obtaining separately issued financial 
statements 

Eligibility to participate 

Authority establishing contribution 
obligations and benefits 

Employee's contribution rate 

Town's contribution rate ($60 per volunteer) 

State obligation 

Period required to vest 

Eligibility and benefits for distribution 
(full-time) 

Eligibility and benefits for distribution 
(volunteer) 
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Oklahoma Firefighter's 
Pension and 

Retirement System 

Firefighters Pension & Retirement 
4545 N. Lincoln Blvd. 
Oklahoma City, OK 73105-3414 

All full-time or voluntary firefighters 
of a participating municipality and 
hired before age 45. 

State Statute 

NIA 

$60 

State appropriation to fund the 
unfunded actuarial accrued liability 

20 years of service 

20 years credited service, 2 Y,% of 
Final average salary multiplied by 
the years of credited service with a 
maximum of 30 years considered; if 
vested; at or after age 50, or after 1 O 
but before 20 years of credited 
service, with reduced benefits. 

20 years credited service equal to 
$5.46 per month per year of service, 
with a maximum of 30 years 
considered. 
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Deferred retirement option 

Provisions for: 
Cost of living adjustments 
(normal retirement) 

Provisions for: 
Death (duty, non-duty, post retirement) 
Disability (duty, non-duty) 
Cost of living allowances 

Contributions and Trend Information 

Contributions required by State Statute: 

Fiscal Required 
Year Contribution 

2012 960 
2013 900 
2014 960 

Yes, 20 years credited with 
continued service for a maximum 
of 30 or more years 

Yes, if vested by 5/83 

Yes 
Yes 
Yes 

Percent 
Contributed 

100% 
100% 
100% 

Trend information showing progress of the Systems in accumulating sufficient assets 
to pay benefits when due is presented in their respective separate annual financial 
reports. 

Related-Party Investments 

As of June 30, 2014, the System held no related-party investments of the Town or of 
its component units. 

3.D. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Town is exposed to various risks ofloss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or 
destruction of assets; errors or omissions; injuries to employees; employee's health and 
life; and natural disasters. 

43 



TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

The Town manages these various risks ofloss as follows: 

Type of Loss Method Managed Risk Retained 

a. Torts, errors and omissions 

b. Injuries to employees 
(workers' compensation) 

c. Physical property loss and 
natural disasters 

d. Health and life 

Purchased insurance with Oklahoma 
Municipal Assurance Group 

Purchased insurance with Oklahoma 
Municipal Assurance Group 

Purchased insurance with Oklahoma 
Municipal Assurance Group 

Participates in the Oklahoma State 
Education Employees Group 
Insurance Board 

(I) 

(!) 

(!) 

None 

Management believes such coverage is sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured 
losses to the Town. Settled claims have not exceeded this insurance coverage in any of 
the past three fiscal years. 

3.E. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

COMMITMENTS 

At June 30, 2014, the Town had an unrecorded commitment for earned but unused 
vacation and compensatory time leave benefits that would require payment upon 
employee termination of service. 

The compensated absences commitment of$11,539 at June 30, 2014, can be 
summarized as follows: 

Vacation 

CONTINGENCIES 

Town 
$ 4,671 

Grant Program Involvement 

SMIA 
$ 6,868 

Total 
$ 11,539 

In the normal course of operations, the Town participates in various federal or 
state grant/loan programs from year to year. The grant/loan programs are often 
subject to additional audits by agents of the granting or loaning agency, the 
purpose of which is to ensure compliance with the specific conditions of the grant 
or loan. Any liability of reimbursement that may arise as a result of these audits 
cannot be reasonably determined at this time, although it is believed the amount, 
if any, would not be material. 
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Litigation 

TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

The financial statements do not include accrual or provision for loss contingencies 
resulting from litigation. Under applicable Oklahoma statutes, such judgments 
may become liabilities only of the Debt Service Fund and only in the year in 
which tax revenue is specifically assessed for payment of the claim, and only to 
the extent of the taxes so specifically assessed in that year. Such claims are 
generally paid through special tax assessments over a three-year period. 

Accordingly, the Town believes that such claims should be recorded in the year in 
which taxes are assessed for payment on the claim, only to the extent of such tax 
revenue that is actually provided. This method is preferable to the conflicting rule 
for treatment of loss contingencies as set out in Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No.5 (issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board) 
wherein contingencies should be recorded in full in the year in which it is 
probable that a liability has been created if the amount of loss can be reasonably 
estimated. 

3.F. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The Town did not have any subsequent events through the date the financial statements 
were issued, for events requiring recording or disclosure in the financial statements for 
the year ending June 30, 2014. 
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Supplementary information includes financial information and disclosures that provide 
users of this report with additional data that supplements the government-wide 
statements, fund financial statements, and notes (referred to as "the basic financial 
statements"). 



TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

ON PENSION PLAN FUNDING PROGRESS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund 

Defined Benefit Retirement Plan - Schedule of Funding Progress 

Actuarial Value Accrued Unfunded 
Valuation of Liability AAL Funded Covered 

Date Assets AAL* UAAL Ratio Pavroll 

l/1112 806,242 l,008,329 202,087 80.0% 452,963 

l/1/13 848,108 l,011,911 163,804 83.8% 436,681 

1/1/14 915,389 1,016,995 101,606 90.0% 498,208 

UAALasa 
Percentage of 
Covered Pavroll 

44.6% 

37.5% 

20.4% 

Covered payroll is the total annualized rate of pay as of the valuation date based on actual pay for the 
preceding year. 
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TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

MODIFIED CASH BASIS - GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

Variance with 
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget 

Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative) 

Beginning B udgetruy Fund Balance 107,495 107,495 107,495 

Revenues: 
Taxes 

Sales tax 164,000 164,000 167,463 3,463 
Use tax 30,000 30,000 30,372 372 
Franchise tax 19,300 19,300 25,663 6,363 
Cigarette tax 6,300 6,300 5,959 (341) 

Total Taxes 219,600 219,600 229,457 9,857 

Intergovernmental: 
Other Grants 4,000 4,974 4,474 (500) 
Alcoholic beverage tax 16,000 16,000 17,402 1,402 
Commercial vehicle tax 15,000 15,000 16,542 1,542 
Gasoline excise tax 4,000 4,000 3,919 (81) 

Total Intergovernmental 39,000 39,974 42,337 2,363 

Charges for services 5,000 5,000 3,650 (1,350) 

Fines and forefeitures 
Court Fines 56,000 56,000 75,824 19,824 

Total Fines and Forfeitures 56,000 56,000 75,824 19,824 

Licenses and Pennits 2,000 2,000 2,314 314 

Interest Income 200 200 189 (11) 

Miscellaneous: 
Oil & Gas Royalties 100 100 285 185 
Rentals 4,500 4,500 6,200 1,700 
Cemetery Lot Sales 500 500 787 287 
Donations 0 0 1,550 1,550 
Misc. Revenue 10,500 10,500 13,228 2,728 

Total Miscellaneous 15,600 15,600 22,050 6,450 

Other Financing Sources: 
Transfers from other funds 100,000 145,352 137,018 (8,334) 

Total Other Financing Sources 100,000 145,352 137,018 (8,334) 

Amounts available for appropriation 544,895 591,221 620,334 29,113 
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TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 
BUDETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

MODIFIED CASH BASIS · GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

Budgeted Amounts Actual 
Orig!nal Final Amounts 

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows): 

Clerk: 
Personal services 6,600 6,800 6,768 
Materials and supplies 950 950 651 
Other services and charges 617 617 136 
Capital outlay 1,000 800 0 

Total Clerk 9,167 9,167 7,555 

Municipal Court: 
Other services and charges 4,800 4,800 4,800 

Total Municipal Court 4,800 4,800 4,800 

Attorney: 
Other services and charges 4,500 4,500 4,500 

Total Attorney 4,500 4,500 4,500 

General Government: 
Materials and supplies 7,200 7,200 3,614 
Other services and charges 37,320 37,320 29,437 

Total General Govemmnent 44,520 44,520 33,051 

Police: 
Personal services 186,250 186,250 169,086 
Materials and supplies 28,000 28,600 27,699 
Other services and charges 13,810 13,210 12,546 
Capital outlay 3,000 3,000 995 

Total Police 231,060 231,060 210,326 

Fire: 
Personal services 3,300 3,300 3,203 
Materials and supplies 23,550 28,524 10,146 
Other services and charges 45,332 45,332 29,021 

Total Fire 72,182 77,156 42,370 
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Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive (Negative) 

32 
299 
481 
800 

1,612 

0 
0 

0 
0 

3,586 
7,883 

11,469 

17,164 
901 
664 

2,005 
20,734 

97 
18,378 
16,311 
34,786 



TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 
BUDETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

MODIFIED CASH BASIS - GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

Budgeted Amounts Actual 
Original Final Amounts 

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows): 

Street: 
Personal services 113,800 113,800 111,401 
Materials and supplies 26,470 25,385 13,275 
Capital outlay 10,000 24,552 24,517 

Total Street 150,270 163,737 149,193 

Parks & Recreation: 
Materials and supplies 5,000 5,000 5,000 
Capital outlay 0 31,000 31,000 

Total Parks & Recreation 5,000 36,000 36,000 

Library: 
Materials and supplies 630 194 0 
Other services and charges 1,140 1,601 1,547 
Capital outlay 2,500 2,500 0 

Total Library 4,270 4,295 1,547 

Other Financing Uses: 
Transfers to other funds 4,775 5,797 5,792 
Total Other Financing Sources 4,775 5,797 5,792 

Total Charges to Appropriations 530,544 581,032 495,134 

Ending Budgetary Fund Balance 14,351 10,189 125,200 
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Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive (Negative) 

2,399 
12,110 

35 
14,544 

0 
0 
0 

194 
54 

2,500 
2,748 

5 
5 

85,898 

115,0ll 



TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

MODIFIED CASH BASIS· STREET UTILITY SALES TAX 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance 

Revenues: 
Taxes 
Sales tax 

Total Taxes 

Amounts available for appropriation 

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows): 

Other Financing Uses: 
Transfers to other funds 
Total Other Financing Sources 

Total Charges to Appropriations 

Ending Budgetary Fund Balance 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original 

325,000 
325,000 

325,000 

325,000 
325,000 
325,000 
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Final 

330,000 
330,000 

330,000 

330,000 
330,000 
330,000 

Actual 
Amounts 

334,926 
334,926 

334,926 

334,926 
334,926 
334,926 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive (Negative) 

4,926 
4,926 

4,926 

(4,926) 
(4,926) 
(4,926) 



TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
MODIFIED CASH BASIS - CDBG GRANT 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
Variance with 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget 
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative) 

Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance 0 0 0 

Revenues: 
Intergovemment 
CDBGGrant 212,500 212,500 197,500 (15,000) 
Interest 0 0 0 0 

Total Taxes 212,500 212,500 197,500 (15,000) 

Amounts available for appropriation 212,500 212,500 197,500 (15,000) 

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows): 

Other Financing Uses: 
Transfers from other funds 212,500 446,534 446,534 0 
Transfers to other funds (425,000) (659,034) (596,592) 62,442 
Total Other Financing Sources (212,500) (212,500) (150,058) 62,442 

Total Charges to Appropriations (212,500) (212,500) (150,058) 62,442 

Ending Budgetary Fund Balance 0 0 47,442 47,442 
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Budget Law 

TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 
NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

JUNE 30, 2014 

The Town prepares its annual operating budget under the provisions of the Municipal 
Budget Act (the "Budget Act"). In accordance with those provisions, the following 
process is used to adopt the annual budget: 

a. Prior to June 1, the Mayor submits to the Town Council a proposed operating 
budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. 

b. Public hearings are conducted to obtain citizen comments. At least one public 
hearing must be held no later than 15 days prior to July 1. 

c. Subsequent to the public hearings but no later than seven days prior to July 1, the 
budget is adopted by resolution of the Town Council. 

d. The adopted budget is filed with the Office of State Auditor and Inspector. 

• The legal level of control at which expenditures may not legally exceed 
appropriations is by department within a fund. 

All transfers of appropriations between departments and supplemental appropriations 
require Town Council approval. The Mayor may transfer appropriations between object 
categories within a department without Town Council approval. Supplemental 
appropriations must also be filed with the Office of State Auditor and Inspector. 

Basis of Accounting 

The budget is prepared on the same modified cash basis of accounting as applied to the 
governmental funds in the basic financial statements. Revenues and expenditures are 
reported when they result from cash transactions. 

52 



OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Other supplementary information includes financial statements and schedules presented 
for purposes of additional analysis. 



ASSETS 

TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET-MODIFIED CASH BASIS 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
June 30, 2014 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Hunting& Cemetery Police 
Fishing Nutrition Care Training 

Cash and cash equivalents 5,081 460 4,616 7,601 
Investments 50,415 0 3,545 0 

Total Assets 55,496 460 8,161 7,601 

FUND BALANCES 

Restricted for: 
Hunting & Fishing 55,496 
Nutrition Program 460 
Cemetery Care 8,161 

Assigned 7,601 
Total Fund Balances 55,496 460 8,161 7,601 
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Total 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Funds 

17,758 
53,960 
71,718 

55,496 
460 

8,161 
7,601 

71,718 



TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-MODIFIED CASH BASIS 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
Total 

Nonmajor 
Hunting & Cemetery Police Governmental 

Fishing Nutrition Care Training Funds 

Revenues: 
Licenses & Pennits 3,312 3,312 
Intergovernmental 39,I64 39,164 
Investment income 198 I8 216 
Miscellaneous 412 2,180 2,592 
Total Revenues 3,510 39,164 430 2,180 45,284 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
Hunting & Fishing 0 
Nutrition Program 45,35I 45,351 
Cemetery Care 0 
Police Special Revenue Fund 0 
Capital Outlay 0 

Total Expenditures 0 45,351 0 0 45,351 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 3,510 (6,187) 430 2,180 (67) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfers in 5,792 5,792 
Transfers out 0 
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses): 0 5,792 0 0 5,792 

Net Change in fund balances 3,510 (395) 430 2,180 5,725 

Fund Balances-Beginning 51,986 855 7,731 5,421 65,993 

Fund Balances-Ending 55,496 460 8,161 7,601 71,718 
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TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE-MODIFIED CASH BASIS 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
HUNTING & FISHING 

Budgeted Amounts Actual 
Variance with 
Final Budget 

Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative) 

Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance 51,986 51,986 51,986 0 

Resources (Inflows): 
Licenses & Pennits 3,000 3,708 3,312 (396) 
Investment Income 250 245 198 (47) 
Amounts available for appropriation 55,236 55,939 55,496 (443) 

Charges to appropriations (Outflows): 
Hunting and Fishing 
Materials and supplies 0 0 0 0 
Other services and charges 0 0 0 0 

Total Hunting and Fishing 0 0 0 0 

Total Charges to Appropriations 0 0 0 0 

Ending Budetary Fund Balance 55,236 55,939 55,496 (443) 

NUTRITION FUND 
Variance with 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget 
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative) 

Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance 855 855 855 0 

Resources (Inflows): 
Intergovernmental 37,387 39,165 39,164 (1) 
Transfer In 4,775 5,797 5,792 5) 
Amounts available for appropriation 43,017 45,817 45,811 6 

Nutrition 
Personal services 29,349 32,393 32,393 0 
Other services and charges 12,813 12,989 12,958 31 

Total Nutrition 42,162 45,382 45,351 31 

Total Charges to Appropriations 42,162 45,382 45,351 31 

Ending Budgetary Fund Balance 855 435 460 25 
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TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 
BUDGET ARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - MODIFIED CASH BASIS 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance 

Resources (Inflows): 
Investment Income 
Miscellaneous 
Amounts available for appropriation 

Charges to appropriations (Outflows): 
Cemetery Care Fund 
Capital outlay 

Total Cemetery Care Fund 

Total Charges to Appropriations 

Ending Budetary Fund Balance 

Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance 

Resources (Inflows): 
Investment Income 
Miscellaneous 
Amounts available for appropriation 

Charges to appropriations (Outflows): 
Police Special Revenue Fund 

Materials and supplies 
Transfers out 

Total Police Special Revenue Fund 

Total Charges to Appropriations 

Ending Budetary Fund Balance 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
CEMETERY CARE FUND 

Variance with 
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget 

Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative) 

7,731 7,731 7,731 0 

50 50 18 (32) 
500 500 412 (88) 

8,281 8,281 8,161 (120) 

0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 

8,281 8,281 8,161 120 

POLICE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
Variance with 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget 
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative) 

5,421 5,421 5,421 0 

100 100 0 (100) 
2,500 2,500 2,180 (320) 
8,021 8,021 7,601 (420) 

0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 

8,021 8,021 7,601 420 
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TOWN OF SPffiO, OKLAHOMA 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS- MODIFIED CASH BASIS 

FIDUCIARY FUND 
JUNE 30, 2014 

Agency Funds 
Municipal Meter 

Court Fund Deposit Fund Totals 
ASSETS 

Cash, and cash equivalents 
Investments 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Due to General 
Due to other funds 
Utility deposit liability 

Total liabilities 
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$10,334 

$10,334 

10,334 

$10,334 

$17,739 
175,700 

$193,439 

24,027 
169,412 

$193,439 

$28,073 
175,700 

$203,773 

$10,334 
24,027 

169,412 
$203,773 



Schedule 1 
TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AW ARDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

Federal Grantor/ 
Program Title 

Federal 

CFDANo. 
Award 

Amount 
Federal 

Expenditures 
USDA Rural Development: 

Loan: 
Water and Waste Disposal Systems for Rural Communities 

Department of Housing and Urban Development: 
Pass-Through Program From: 

Oklahoma Department of Commerce 

Community Development Block Grants 

10.760 2,261,000 838,723 

14.228 212,500 197,500 
Total $ 2,473,500 $ 1,036,223 

TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

JUNE 30, 2014 

NOTE 1 - GENERAL 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal 
awards of the Town of Spiro, Oklahoma (the "Town"). 
The Town's reporting entity is defined in Note 1 to the Town's basic financial statements. Federal 
awards received directrly from federal agencies, as well as federal awards passed through other 
government agencies, are included on the schedule. 

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is present using the modified cash 
basis of accounting, which is described in Note 1 to the Town's basic financial statements. 

NOTE 3 - RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Federal awards revenues are reported in the Town's basic financial statements as follows: 

Federal Sources 

General $ 
Total $ 

NOTE 4 - RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL FINANCIAL REPORTS 

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedule agree with the amounts reported in the related 
federal financial reports. 
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KERSHAW CPA & ASSOCIATES, PC 

5300 WEST OKMULGEE AVENUE 
MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA 74401 
PHONE (918) 684-1040 
FAX (918) 684-1041 

607NORTH1" STREET 
PONCA CITY, OKLAHOMA 74601 

WEB: KERSHAWCPA.COM PHONE (580) 762-1040 
E-MAIL: REK@KERSHAWCPA.COM FAX (580) 762-1047 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING 

To the Board of Trustees 
Town of Spiro. Oklahoma 

STANDARDS 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States, and in accordance with Oklahoma Statutes, the 
modified cash basis financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities. each major fund. and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Spiro. 
Oklahoma, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which were prepared on 
the modified cash basis of accounting, which is a comprehensive 
basis of accounting other than generally accepted accounting 
principles, which collectively comprise the Town of Spiro, 
Oklahoma's basic financial statements, and have issued our report 
thereon dated May 6, 2015. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Town of 
Spiro's internal control over financial reporting (internal 
cont ro 1 ) to determine the audit procedures that a re a pp rop ri ate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on 
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Spiro's internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Town of Spiro's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or 
operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in 
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. 
A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the 
entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected 
and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
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deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies. in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important 
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that 
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and 
therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during 
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We 
did identify certain deficiencies in internal control described 
in the accompanying Schedule of Findings that we consider to be 
significant deficiencies. Those deficiencies are listed as Item 
14-01. 

Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town 
of Spiro's financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of compliance with certain 
provisions of laws. regulations, contracts and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect 
on the determination of financial statement amounts. However. 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not 
an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances 
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Town of Spiro's Response to Findings 
Town of Spiro's response to the findings identified in our audit 
is described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings. Town of 
Spiro's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 
This report is intended solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report 
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is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication 
is not suitable for any other purpose. 

~k,.v C/>,A $b,elA~ .P.c. 
Kershaw CPA & Associates, PC 

May 6, 2015 
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

To the Board of Trustees 
Town of Spiro, Oklahoma 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
We have audited the Town of Spiro, Oklahoma's compliance with the 
types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-
133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of the Town of Spiro, Oklahoma's major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2014. The Town of Spiro, 
Oklahoma's major federal programs are identified in the summary 
of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of 
laws, regulations. contracts and grants applicable to its federal 
programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for 
each of the Town of Spiro, Oklahoma's major federal programs 
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in 
accordance auditing standards genera 11 y accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, 
Audi ts of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations, and in accordance with Oklahoma Statutes. Those 
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred 
to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence about the Town of Spiro, Oklahoma's compliance 
with those requirements and performing such other procedures, as 
we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

As described in Note 1, these financial statements were prepared 
on the modified cash basis of accounting, which is a 
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comprehensive basis of accounting other than U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

We believe that our audit provides 
opinion on compliance for each major 
our audit does not provide a legal 
Spiro, Oklahoma's compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

a reasonable basis 
federal program. 
determination on 

for our 
However, 
Town of 

In our opinion, the Town of Spiro, Oklahoma complied, in all 
material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on 
each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 
2014. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
Management of the Town of Spiro, Oklahoma is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we 
considered the Town of Spiro, Oklahoma's internal control over 
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a 
direct and material effect on each major federal program to 
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our op1n1on on 
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report 
on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB 
Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Town of Spiro, Oklahoma's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the 
design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or to detect and correct, non comp 1 i ance 
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program a 
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
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deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal 
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention 
by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for 
the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 
internal control over compliance that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider 
to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may 
exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is 
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is 
not suitable for any other purpose. 

~~Cf"/) S:b,.,.l,,,-4.; .P.c. 
Kershaw, CPA & Associates, PC 

May 6, 2015 
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TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Type of auditor's report issue: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material weaknesses identified? 

Significant deficiencies identified 
that are not considered to be material 
weaknesses? 

Noncompliance material to financial 
statements noted? 

FEDERAL AWARDS 
Internal control over major programs: 

Material weaknesses identified? 

Significant deficiencies identified 
that are not considered to be 
material weaknesses? 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance 

Unmodified 

__ _,es 

x yes 

--~es 

__ yes 

__ yes 

for major programs: Unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with 
section 510(a) of Circular A-133? 

Identification of major programs: 

__ _,es 

_x_no 

__ none reported 

__ x_no 

__ x_no 

__ x_none reported 

__ x_no 

1110.760 Water and Waste Disposal Systems for Rural Communities 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
type A and type B programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

INTERNAL CONTROL FINDINGS: 

Item 14-01: Segregation of Duties 

$300,000 

_x _ _,yes __ no 

Criteria: A good system of internal control requires a proper segregation 
of duties to prevent one person from being in a position to authorize, 
execute, and record the same transaction. 
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

Condition: Due to the size of the Town's major areas of internal control, 
that would be prevalent in a larger Town, such segregation of duties is not 
available for this size operation. Duties are concentrated in the hands of 
a few individuals. who are responsible for all phases of the accounting 
functions. Because of this lack of division of responsibility, internal 
control is determined to be weak. and in some instances, non-existent. 

Cause/Effect: Due to the limited number of personnel. a breach of internal 
controls could occur and not be detected in the normal course of operations. 

Recommendation: The Board should continue to be actively involved in the 
operations of the Town. 

Response: The Board continues to be actively involved in the operations of 
the Town. 

COMPLIANCE FINDINGS: 

None 

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

None 
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TOWN OF SPIRO, OKLAHOMA 
SUMMARY STATUS OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

JUNE 30, 2014 

INTERNAL CONTROL FINDINGS: 

Item 13-01: Segregation of Duties 

Criteria: A good system of internal control requires a proper 
segregation of duties to prevent one person from being in a 
position to authorize, execute. and record the same transaction. 

Condition: Due to the size of the Town's major areas of internal 
control, that would be prevalent in a larger Town, such 
segregation of duties is not available for this size operation. 
Duties are concentrated in the hands of a few individuals, who 
are responsible for all phases of the accounting functions. 
Because of this lack of division of responsibility, internal 
control is determined to be weak, and in some instances, non­
existent. 

Cause: The Town's small size limits the amount of staffing 
needed to properly segregate the accounting functions. 

Effect: Due to the 1 imited number of personnel, a breach of 
internal controls could occur and not be detected in the normal 
course of operations. 

Recommendation: The lack of segregation of duties is a common 
deficiency in Town's the size of Spiro. The governing body 
should be aware of the increased risk and develop policies and 
procedures to reduce the effect of the internal control 
deficiency. 

Response: The Board continues to be actively involved in the 
operations of the Town. 

COMPLIANCE FINDINGS: 

None. 

Current Status: The finding still exists in the current year. 
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